From: Kerry Spratt (Central Coast LHD)
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Hi Andrew and Tahlia

Thank you for the time extension in which to provide comment on the amended proposal DA 10609. |
have consulted with colleagues, and rather than a new submission, will refer to submissions on the
previous application.

In relation to the previous submission by Central Coast Public Health Unit dated 28 October 2020:

1. Our submission relates in part to assessment and management of air quality and noise and
vibration impacts and site contamination, during demolition, excavation and construction
phases. The SEE for the amended proposal continues to refer to the need for a detailed
Construction Noise and Vibration Management Plan and an Environmental Management Plan, to
address these impacts. There is still no assessment of air quality impacts evident in the
amended application.

2. We also raised suggestions relating to various design features and cumulative impact on local
amenity from intensive development.

3. Theissues raised and comments made in our previous submission remain relevant, and we
request that the submission dated 28 October 2020 be applied to the amended application
please. The submission is attached.

In relation to the previous submission by Central Coast Local Health District dated 3 November 2020:
1. Michael Burrow Acting Zone Manager, Aeromedical Operations, NSW Ambulance, has advised
that he has reviewed the report from Avipro on aviation impact and shared this report with
Westpac and Toll. On this basis, Michael has advised that there are nil issues with the
development.
2. The amended application does not appear to address cumulative impacts on health services and
so the previous comments on this issue should be applied to the amended application please.

Please contact me if further information is needed, thanks.

Regards Kerry

Kerry Spratt

Senior Environmental Health Officer

Central Coast Public Health Unit

Level 10, 77A Holden St, Level 10, Gosford 2250

PO Box 361 GOSFORD NSW 2250

Ph 4320 9730 Mob 0412 014 430 Fax 4320 9746 kerry.spratt@health.nsw.gov.au
www.health.nsw.gov.au
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Ms Michelle Niles

Senior Planner, Regional Assessments

Planning & Assessment

Department of Planning, Industry and Environment

Email: michelle.niles@planning.nsw.gov.au

Dear Ms Niles

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Proposed Mixed Use Development, 10 Young
Street, West Gosford (DA 10609).

The Western Gateway Precinct should be developed according to eco-city principles, built on the
principles of living within the means of the environment." In this regard, planning for urban
development should take account of the cumulative impacts on human health and the environment
arising from the intensification of our built form. While every development is assessed independently,
together over time, all developments stand to contribute positively and negatively to urban form and
function. The potential cumulative impacts of multi-storey development in the Gosford area should be
considered with ecologically sustainable development principles as a cornerstone. High rise buildings
should follow sustainable and green architecture standards and include planning with nature and other
relevant ecological designs® to promote healthy, socially sustainable communities.

Please find our comments below.

Air Quality
The Statement of Environmental Effects does not appear to provide any assessment of potential air

quality impacts. We suggest that a thorough assessment is required to identify potential impacts on

air quality particularly during construction, with appropriate mitigation measures if required. Without

pre-empting this assessment, it appears possible that construction works may give rise to particulate
matter emissions.

Our advice is that epidemiological studies have been unable to identify a threshold below which
exposure to particulate matter air pollution (PM) is not associated with health effects. Therefore, any
increase in exposure must be assumed to have an adverse impact on the health of the community,
even at levels below the assessment criteria. In addition to particulate matter emissions, the risks
presented by hydrocarbon vapours during excavation works and asbestos containing materials must
be addressed (Environmental Management Plan sections 6 and 7). We ask that this advice be
considered in determining the current application with appropriate conditions applied to any approval.

! The smart city journal. https://www.thesmartcityjournal.com/en/articles/1042-eco-innovations-eco-cities-eco-towns

2 Razzaghian F, Rahnama MF, Shokouhi, MA (2016). Ecological Analysis of High-Rise Buildings by Eco City Theory (Case Study: Mashhad
Metropolitan). April 2016. International fournal of Humanities and Cultural Studies, at:
http://www.ijhcs.com/index.php/ijhcs/article/view/565/515





Noise and Vibration Impacis

The Acoustic Assessment (p36) notes likely exceedances of noise management levels and potential
exceedances of the highly affected noise management levels, during construction. This assessment
recommends a detafled Construction Noise and Vibration Management Plan be developed prior to
construction including identification of sensitive receivers, setting of appropriate management levels
and predictions of noise and vibration impacts. To aveid impacts on the health and wellbeing of the
community, noise and vibration assessments must include thorough assessment of impacts and
mitigation measures for all potentially affected receivers, and must be to the satisfaction of the
appropriate regulator.

We request that appropriate conditions be applied to any development consent to ensure that
construction noise and vibration impacts are accurately assessed with management strategies
developed to ensure that the surrounding community is not adversely affected.

Site Contamination

The Statement of Environmental Effects (section 4.8), Site Audit Statement and Site Audit Report
indicate that the site is suitable for commercial and industrial uses with the implementation of an
Environmental Management Plan (EMP). The EMP (p10) notes a potentially unacceptable risk to
health from hydrocarbon contaminated groundwater during construction works and maintenance
works involving intrusive works below ground surface. This risk will require ongoing management.

We seek confirmation from the appropriate regulator that:

» the EMP is satisfactory and will be effectively implemented

» the site is suitable for all intended uses (noting residential unit component)

¢ all site contaminants will be appropriately managed to avoid risks to human health including on
site workers, and to the environment. Management must include both construction and future
works

» a satisfactory Construction Environmental Management Plan, addressing all risks, will be
developed and implemented

We request that any approval include conditions to this effect.

Water Use

We commend water conservation measures. The Statement of Environmental Effects (Table 9) notes
the intent to capture rainwater for use in toilet flushing. The applicant should conduct a health risk
assessment to ensure that recycled water quality is fit for the infended end use. A Recycled Water
Management Plan should be developed which includes an incident response and communication
strategy, and all necessary approvals must be obtained. If the project is approved, conditions of
approval should be included fo this effect.

Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED)

We note and support the provision of public open spaces. The success of public open space can
depend on people feeling safe in these areas. The CPTED Assessment (SEE section 5.14) asserts
that the proposal will not have an adverse effect on CPTED Principles. We suggest that the relevant
consideration is not that the development doesn’t adversely affect CPTED principles, rather it is that
the development adopts CPTED principles appropriately. The applicant should conduct a detailed
CPTED assessment to identify all opportunities to enhance the quality of this development by applying
CPTED principles in a best practice manner. The requirement for a thorough CTPED assessment
should be included in the approval conditions should the application be approved.

Project Scale —~ High Rise on the Central Coast
The application seeks an increase on the permissible maximum building height (36m to 45.36m). We
suggest that any variation to the Gosford SEPP 2018 to permit intensification of development on this






site requires careful consideration of potential adverse effects on the amenity of the surrounding area.
The cumulative impact of multiple high rise developments in the Gosford area, many of which also
seek height variations to the SEPP should be considered. A net benefit for the community as whole
should follow if variations are granted.

Public Open Space, Solar Access and Overshadowing

Our urban areas must be ‘places for people’. |t is imperative that the community has access to quality
open space both within and outside the development. This demands high quality, best practice
development. The Project should inciude measures to ensure that the amenity of the local area (in the
form identified as desirable by the community) is protected and enhanced.

The enhancement and protection of native flora and fauna has benefits to human health and wellbeing
through contact with nature, and improving our capacity to deal with climate change and extreme
weather events. We commend rooftop planting and suggest that the use of native species is
preferable to help ensure a healthy and safe haven for wildlife.

All possible measures should be implemented to maximise solar access and minimise over shadowing
within the development and in relation to neighbouring properties and public open spaces. We seek
confirmation that the current design provides the best possible outcome in terms of solar access and
avoidance of overshadowing.

Monitoring and Enforcement

Should the project proceed, management of air quality and noise and vibration impacts on the local
community will be dependent on effective implementation and monitoring of control measures, and
enforcement of the approval conditions. We ask that approval conditions ensure appropriate monitoring
of noise and air quality impacts occurs, and that control measures are effectively implemented.

Community Feedback

We encourage the applicant to consult with the surrounding community, to ensure that the project
does not impact on the community, for example to identify a construction schedule that will create
least possible disruption. The applicant should provide a contact point for complaints if noise and
vibration or air quality issues occur and an undertaking that a prompt and genuine response will be
made to any complaints.

If further information is required, please contact Kerry Spratt, Senior Environmental Health Officer, on
telephone 4320 9730.

Yours faithfully

Dr Kat Taylor
Director, Public Health Unit
Central Coast Local Health District

28 October 2020

Central Coast Public Health Unit

P O Box 361, Gosford NSW 2250

Level 1, 4 Watt Street, Gosford NSW 2250
Telephone (02) 4320 9730 Facsimile (02) 4320 9746
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